
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

HEGION 4 


ATLANfA FEDERAL CENTER 

61 FORgV} H STREET 


A "LANTA, GEORGIA 30303·8960 


FEB 14 2012 
t;'J;RT!flED MAIL 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTEU 

Mr. Bruce Reynolds 
Rives & Reynolds Lumber Company. Inc. 
33 Vaughn Drive 
:-.Jawhez, ~ississippl39120 

RE~ 	 Rives & Reynolds Lumber Company, Inc. 
Consent Agreem('nt and Final Order 
Docket No. EPCRA-04-2012-2020(b) 

Dear ~k Reynolds: 

Enclosed please find an executed copy of the Consent Agr~~Gment and final Order tMi resolves the 
Em<;:rgency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986 matter (Oocket No. RPCRA~04-20 12~ 
2020{b)) involving Rives &. Reynold;; lumher Company, inc. The CAFO was filed with the Regional 
Hearing Clerk, as required by 40 CF.K Part 22 and became effective on the date of the filing, 

Aiso cndosed, please find a copy of the "t\olice of Securities and Exchange Commi$sion Registrants' 
DUly to Discluse Environmental Legal Proceedings:' This document puts you on notice of your 
potential duty to disclose to the Security and Exchange Commission any environmental enforcement 
actions taken by the Environmental Protection Agency. If you have any question::; with regard::; to the 
SEC:; el1viroruneI'nal disdosure requirements, you may refer to the contact phone {lumber at the bOHom 
oftbe SEC Notice. 

If you have any questions. plcase call Mr. Jyuti Ilhushan at {404} 562-9182. 

;&>Jr. IIc~{alc~ 
Chief 
EPCRA Enforcement Section 

Enclosures 
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UI\"lTED STATES ENHRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

IN THE MATTER Of: 

Rives & Reynolds Lumber 
Company. Inc, - Natchez and 

Louisville; r.:fS facilities. 

Respondent 
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CQNSENT AGREEIV!EN'(1\ND FINAL ORDER 

l. Ibis is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 325 of the Emergency 
rimming and Community Right-to-Know Act (HPCRA), 42 U.S.c. § 11045, mld pursuant to the 
Con50lidated Rules ofPractice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and 
the RevocationfTerminatlon or Suspension of Pemlits (Consolidated Rules), codified ai 40 
C.F.R. Part 22, Complainant I;> the Director Qf the Air, Pesticides and T oxics Management 
Division, Region 4, United Stalt.:s Emrironmental Protection Agency (EPA). Respondent is Rives 
and Reynolds Lumber Company, Inc. 

2. The authority to take action under Section 325 of EPCRA, 42 U.S,c. § 11045, h, 

vcstC"{] in the Administrator ofEPA. The Administrator ofEPA hac, delegated this authority 
under EPCRA to the Regional Administrators by EPA Delegation 22·3-A, dated May 11. 1994. 
The Regional Administrator, Region 4, has redele-gated this authority to the Dircc[or, Air, 
Pesticides and Toxies Management Divjsion~ by EPA Region 4 Delegation 22-3-A. dated 
November 8. 1994, Pursuant to that delegation, the Director of the Air, Pesticides and Toxics 
Management Division has the authority to commence an enforcement action as the Complainant 
in this matter, 

3. Complainant and Respondent have confcm-.d for the purpose of settlement 
pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22,18 and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations 
described herein without a fonnal hearing, Therefore. without the taking of any evidence or 
testimony, the making of any argument. or the adjudication of any issue in this matter, and in 
accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.l3(b) and 22.18(1)), this Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) win simultaneously commence and conclude this matter. 

II. J.::rellminary Statements 

4.. Respondent is Rives and Reynolds Lumber Company, Inc .• a corporation doing 
business in the State of Mississippi. 

Respondent is a "person" as defllled in Section 329(7) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. 



§ 11049(7). 
6. Respondent owns and operates a !<facilityll as that term is defined by Section 


329(4) ofEPCRA, 42lJ.S.C § 11049(4). 


7. Respondent's facilities are located at 33 Vaughn Drive, Natchez, Mississippi and 
2940 Highway J5 North, Louisville, Mississippi, 

8. Section 312 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11022, and the regulations found at 

40 C.F,R. Part 370, provide that the owner or opermor of a iilcility that is required to prepare or 

have available a Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for hazardous chemicals under the 


.O<x:upation.al Safety and Health Act of 1970 (OSHA) and regulations promulgated under that 
Act, shall submit to the Local Emergency Plauning Committee (LEPC), the State· Emergency 
Response Commission (SERe), and the fire department whhjurisdiction over the faciiily, by 
March 1. 1988; and on or before lvfarch 1 rumually thereafter, a completed emergency and 
hazardous chemical inventory form (Tier I or Tier II) as described in 40 C.F.R. Part 370, 
containing the information required by dUlt part for hazardous chemicals present at the facility at 
anyone time in the calendar year in amounts equal to Qr greater than 10.000 pounds and 
containing the infonnation required by that part for extremely hazardous sttbstances (EHS) 
present at the facility at anyone time in amounts equal to or greater than the threshold planning 
quantity (~Q) or 500 pounds, whichever I:;; less. 

9. At some time during the calendar years 0[2007 and 2008, dieseJ fuel was present 
at the Natchez facility in an amount equal to or greater than 10,000 pounds. Diesel fuel was 
pre'-Cnt at the'"Lollisvillc-lacility in an amount equal to or greater than IO,OQO pOilllds for calendar 
year 2008. 

10. Diesel fuel is a "hazardous chemical" as defined by Section 329(5) of EPCRA, 
42 U.S.C. § 11049(5) for which Respondent is required to prepare or have available an MSDS 
under OSHA at its facility. 

11. Respondent failed to submit a completed Emergency and Hazardous Chemical 
fnventory Form for diesel fuel to the SERe, the LEPC. and fire department willijurisdictiol1 over 
the facility for calendar years 2007 and 2008. by March 1 of each year foU~wing the calendar 
year for which a report v.m required. 

12. EPA aUeges that Respondent violate{ltht: reponing requirements of Section 312 
of EPeR},.., 42 U.S.C. § llOl2, at its facility for calendar year> 2007 and 2008 and is therefore 
subject to the assessment ofpClJalties under Section 325 of EPCRA" 42 US.C. § 11045, 

13. Pursuantto Section 325(c) of EPCRA,42 V.S.c. § 11 045(c). and 40 C.F.R. 
Part ] 9. EPA may assess a penalty ofnot more than $37,500 for each violation of Section 312 
th13:t oceurred after January 12,2009. Each day a violation ofSection 312 continues constitutes a 
separate violation. Civil penalties under Section 325(c) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C § 11 04S(c), may 
be assessed by Administrative Order. 
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14. For !he purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations 
set out above but neither admits nor denies the factual allcgatioI15 set out above. 

15. Respondent waives any right to contest the allegations and its right to appeal the 
pmposed final orolCr accompanyjng the Consent Agreement. 

16, Respondent coqsents to the assc!)::;mem of and agrees to pay the civil penalty 115 

sel forth in this CAPO. 

17. Respondent rertHies that a~ of the date of its execution of this CAFO, it is in 
compliance with aU relevant requirements of EPCRA at the facility. 

18. Compliance \vith this CAFO shalt resolve the allegations of violations contained 
herein. This CAFO shttU not otherwise affect ally liability of Respondem to the Untted StaTes 
other than as expres~ed herein. Neither EPA nor Complainant w-aivcs any right to bring an 
enforcement action Ubraillst Respondent for a violation of any federal or state statute. regulation 
or permit; to initiate an action for imminent and substantia! endangerment; or to pursue criminal 
enforcement 

19. Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this 
CAPO. The parties agree that the sett!cmt:nt of this matter is in tbe public interest and that this 
CAFO is consistent with the applicable requirements of EPCRA. 

V. final Order 

20. Respondent sball pay a civil penalty of SIX TnOUSAND DOLLARS ($6,000). 
for the violations alleged in Section HI. Payment shall be paid within thirty (30) days of the 
effective date ofthis CAFO. 

21. Respondent shall pay the penalty hy forwarding a cashier's or certified check, 
payabJe to: 'Treasurer, United States of Amcrica/' to one of the following addresses: 

axMail: Ih'. Ovemight: 
u.s. Environmental Pmtcction Agency U.S. Bank 

Fines and Penalties 1005 Convention Plaza 

Cincinnati Finance Center Mail StaliQ11 SL-MO-C2GL 

P.O. Box 979077 St. Louis, Missouri 63101 

St. Louis. Missouri 63197-9000 


The check shall refercnci: on its fnce the name and the Docket Number oftne ('AFO. 

22, At the time ofpayment, Respondent shalT send a separate copy of thc check. 
and a written statement that pa}TI1cnt has been made in accordance with this CAFO, to the 
following persons at the following addresses: 
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Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta. Georgia 30303 

Jyoti Bhushan 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticide!; & Toxies Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street. S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Saundi Wilson 
U.S. EVA, RegiQn4 
Ollice of Environmental Accountability 
61 Fors)"h Street, S.W. 
AUanta, Georgia 30303 

23, for the purposes ofstate and federal income taxes, Respondent sball n01 be 
entitled, and agrees not to aHempt~ to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 
pursuant to this CAFO. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shall 
constitute a violation ofthi::;. CAPO. 

24. Pursuant to 3 J U,S.c. § 3717, EPA is entitled to as-<;ess interest and penalties on 
debts owed to the United States and a charge to cover the cost of processing and handling a 
delinquent claim. Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the effective 
date of this CAFO if the penalty is nol paid by the date requlred. Interest wiH be assessed at the 
rate established by the Secretary of Treasury pursuant to 31 U,S,C, § 3717. A charge will be 
assessed to cover the costs of debt collection, including processing and handling CO,'::\($ and 
attorney fees. In addition. a penalty charge wiU be ~sessed on any portion of the debt that 
remains delinquent more than ninety (90) days after payment is tlue. 

25. Complainant and Respondent shan bear tbeir own costs and attorney iees in this 
matter, 

26. This CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, its succeS!iors and nssigns, 

27. The following individual is authorized to receive service for EPA in this 
p!'Ocecding: 

Caron B. Falconer 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxic Manag~ment Division 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
(404) 562-8451 
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28. Each undersigned representative of the parties to this CAPO certifies that he or 
.he is fully authorized by the party represented to enler into thi, CAFO and legally bind that 
party to it. 

VI. Effective Date 

29. The effective date of this eArO shall be the dale upon which the CAFO is filed 
with the Regional Hearing Clerk. 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

By: ~=___~~ Date: 'z'Z-i;;)'bl::L 
:-.lame: -L1.&!;=..A:f1~ll..1.L----- (Typod or PriHted) 

--Lh:..:wL"'~~:\-~.._____ (Typed or Printed) 

U,S, Environmental ProtectIon gcney 

By: -}-L'~?+L\..4ftHi.~L Dute:.._4- A 

• f. z.. 
Beverly H. Banister ~ 
Director 
Air, Pesticide.c; &. Toxies 

Management Division 

APPROVED AND SO ORDERED tms .{2.~ day of~, 2012 

_k-4.~ 
Susan B. Schub 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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CERTIFICATE Or SERVICE 


I hereby certify that f have this day scrl/ed a true and c<mcct ropy of the furegoing Consent Agreement 

and Final Order, In the Matter of: Riy.es & Reynolds Lumber Company. Inc .. Docket.No. EPCRA-04~ 

2012::2020(b), on the parties listt:d below in the manner indicated: 

Caron B. Falconer 	 (Vjft EPA':> internal mail} 
U .5. EPA. Region 4 
Air. Pesticides & Toxics Managcmunt Division 
61 Forsyth Street 
Allanta, Georgia 30303 

Robert Caplan (Via EPA', internal mail) 

U.S, EPA, Region 4 

Office of Environmental Accountabihty 

6 I FOfS)1h SlTeet 

Atlllnta, Georgia 30303 


Mr. Bruce Reynolds (Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested) 

Rlves & Re::rno1d..<; Lumber Company. Inc. 

33 Vaughn Drive 

NatchC'L, Mississippi 39120 
 ~~ r-

Date _~ -/1/-1:1.. 	 _lkt~icA~,~W-
Patricia A. Bullock, Regional Hearing Clerk 
LJuitcU States Environmental 
Protection Agency, Region 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
6 I Forsyth Streel, S.W. 
Atlanla, GA 30303 
(404) 562-9511 
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